
 
 Neuadd y Sir 

Y Rhadyr 
Brynbuga 

 
Dydd Mawrth, 17 Medi 2024 

 
Dear Cynghorwyr, 

CABINET 
 

Gofynnir i chi fynychu cyfarfod Cabinet a gynhelir yn Steve Greenslade Room, County 
Hall, Usk ar Dydd Mercher, 25ain Medi, 2024, am 4.30 pm. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
1.   Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb 

 
 

2.   Datganiadau o Fuddiant 
 

 

3.   Ymateb i'r Ymgynghoriad - Ymestyn darpariaethau rhannu swydd ar gyfer 
aelodau etholedig prif gynghorau i rolau anweithredol 
 
Rhanbarthau/Wardiau yr effeithir arnynt: Pob un 
 
Diben: Cymeradwyo ymateb y Cyngor i ymgynghoriad Llywodraeth Cymru ar 
ymestyn darpariaethau rhannu swydd ar gyfer aelodau etholedig prif 
gynghorau i rolau anweithredol. 
 
Awdur: John Pearson, Rheolwr Democratiaeth Leol (Pennaeth 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd) 
 
Manylion Cyswllt: johnpearson@monmouthshire.gov.uk 
 

1 - 24 

4.   GALW I MEWN Y POLISI CLUDIANT RHWNG Y CARTREF A'R YSGOL 
2025-26 
 
GALW I MEWN Y POLISI CLUDIANT RHWNG Y CARTREF A'R YSGOL 
2025-26 
 
Rhanbarthau/Wardiau yr effeithir arnynt: Pob un 
 
Diben: Rhoi cyfle i'r Cabinet ailystyried penderfyniad y Cabinet ar 11eg Medi 
ynghylch y newidiadau arfaethedig i feini prawf cymhwyster pellter o fewn y 
Polisi Cludiant rhwng y Cartref a'r Ysgol arfaethedig ar gyfer 2025-26. Mae 
hyn yn dilyn galw'r penderfyniad i mewn ac argymhelliad dilynol y Pwyllgor 
Craffu Pobl i gyfeirio'r mater yn ôl i'r Cabinet. 
 
 
Awdur: Matthew Gatehouse, Prif Swyddog – Pobl, Perfformiad a 
Phartneriaethau 
 

25 - 32 

Public Document Pack

mailto:johnpearson@monmouthshire.gov.uk


 

 

Manylion Cyswllt: matthewgatehouse@monmouthshire.gov.uk 
 
 
 

 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
Paul Matthews 
Chief Executive 

mailto:matthewgatehouse@monmouthshire.gov.uk


 

 

 
 

PORTFFOLIOS Y CABINET 
 

Cynghorydd Sir  Maes Cyfrifoldeb Ward 

Mary Ann 
Brocklesby 
 

Yr Arweinydd 

Swyddogion Arweiniol - Paul Matthews, Matthew 

Gatehouse  

 

Strategaeth a Chyfeiriad yr Awdurdod Cyfan  

Adolygu a gwerthuso perfformiad yr awdurdod cyfan 

Hyrwyddo lleoliaeth o fewn fframweithiau rhanbarthol a 

chenedlaethol  

Perthynas â Llywodraeth Cymru, Llywodraeth y DU a 

chymdeithasau llywodraeth leol  

Cysylltiadau Rhanbarthol â Rhanbarthau Dinesig a'r 

Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus   

Caffael Strategol   

Cynhyrchu a defnydd bwyd lleol, a chaffael gan 

gynnwys amaethgoedwigaeth a garddwriaeth leol   

Llanelly  
 

Paul Griffiths Aelod Cabinet dros Gynllunio a Datblygu 

Economaidd a’r Dirprwy Arweinydd  

Swyddog Arweiniol - Frances O'Brien  

 

Strategaeth Economaidd  

Cynllun datblygu lleol a chynllun datblygu strategol gan 

gynnwys safleoedd tai strategol   

Digartrefedd, darpariaeth dai fforddiadwy a thai sector 

preifat (cartrefi gwag, cynllun prydlesu, benthyciadau 

gwella cartrefi, grantiau cyfleusterau i'r anabl a 

thechnoleg addasol) 

Cefnogi Canol Trefi gan gynnwys parcio ceir a gorfodi  

Rheoli Datblygu a Rheoli Adeiladu  

Sgiliau a Chyflogaeth   

Cysylltedd band eang   

Meysydd parcio a gorfodaeth sifil  
safonau masnach, iechyd yr amgylchedd, iechyd y 

cyhoedd, trwyddedu  

Chepstow Castle & 

Larkfield 

Ben Callard Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau 

Prif Swyddogion – Peter Davies, Frances O'Brien, 

Matthew Phillips, Jane Rodgers   

 

Cyllid gan gynnwys CATC a’r cylch cyllideb blynyddol 

Buddion 

Technoleg a gwybodaeth ddigidol   

Adnoddau dynol, y gyflogres, iechyd a diogelwch 

Tir ac adeiladau   

Cynnal a chadw a rheoli eiddo  

Cynllunio brys 

Llanfoist & Govilon 



 

 

Martyn Groucutt Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg  

Swyddogion Arweiniol - Will McLean, Ian Saunders  

 

Addysg Blynyddoedd Cynnar   

Addysg statudol pob oed  

Anghenion dysgu ychwanegol/cynhwysiant  

Addysg ôl-16 ac addysg oedolion  

Safonau a gwelliant ysgolion  

Dysgu Cymunedol  

Rhaglen cymunedau cynaliadwy ar gyfer dysgu  

Gwasanaethau Ieuenctid  

Cludiant ysgol  

Lansdown 

Ian Chandler 

 

Aelod Cabinet dros Ofal Cymdeithasol, Diogelu a 

Gwasanaethau Iechyd Hygyrch  

Swyddog Arweiniol - Jane Rodgers  

 

Gwasanaethau Plant  

Maethu a mabwysiadu  

Gwasanaethau Troseddau Ieuenctid   

Gwasanaethau Oedolion   

Diogelu plant ac oedolion awdurdod cyfan  

Anableddau   

Iechyd meddwl a lles 

Perthynas â darparwyr iechyd a mynediad at 

ddarpariaeth iechyd   

Park 

Catrin Maby Aelod Cabinet dros Newid yn yr Hinsawdd a'r 

Amgylchedd 

Swyddogion Arweiniol – Frances O'Brien, Ian Saunders 

 

Datgarboneiddio  

Cynllunio trafnidiaeth, trafnidiaeth gyhoeddus, priffyrdd a 

fflyd Cyngor Sir Fynwy 

Teithio llesol a hawliau tramwy  

Rheoli gwastraff, gofal stryd, sbwriel, mannau 

cyhoeddus a pharciau  

Palmentydd a lonydd cefn  

Lliniaru, rheoli ac adfer llifogydd  

Cefn gwlad, bioamrywiaeth ac iechyd afonydd   

Drybridge 

Angela Sandles 

 

Aelod Cabinet dros Gydraddoldeb ac Ymgysylltu  

Swyddogion Arweiniol – Frances O'Brien,, Matthew 

Gatehouse, Jane Rodgers  

 

Anghydraddoldeb cymunedol a thlodi (iechyd, incwm, 

maeth, anfantais, gwahaniaethu, ynysu ac argyfwng 

costau byw) 

Ymgysylltu â dinasyddion a hyrwyddo democratiaeth 

gan gynnwys gweithio gyda sefydliadau gwirfoddol  

Profiad y dinesydd - canolfannau cymunedol, canolfan 

gyswllt, a gwasanaeth cwsmeriaid a chofrestryddion  

Canolfannau hamdden, chwarae a chwaraeon  

Datblygu Twristiaeth a’r Strategaeth Ddiwylliannol  

Y Dref 



 

 

Cyfleusterau cyhoeddus 

Gwasanaethau Etholiadol ac adolygu’r cyfansoddiad 

Cyfathrebu, cysylltiadau cyhoeddus a marchnata  

Moeseg a safonau  

Y Gymraeg 

 



 

 

 

Nodau a Gwerthoedd Cyngor Sir Fynwy 
 

Ein Pwrpas 

 

 i ddod yn sir ddi-garbon, gan gefnogi lles, iechyd ac urddas i bawb ar bob 

cam o'u bywydau. 

 

Amcanion rydym yn gweithio tuag atynt  

 
 Lle teg i fyw lle mae effeithiau anghydraddoldeb a thlodi wedi'u lleihau;  

 Lle gwyrdd i fyw a gweithio gyda llai o allyriadau carbon a gwneud 

cyfraniad cadarnhaol at fynd i'r afael â'r argyfwng yn yr hinsawdd a natur;  

 Lle ffyniannus ac uchelgeisiol, lle mae canol trefi bywiog a lle gall 

busnesau dyfu a datblygu;  

 Lle diogel i fyw lle mae gan bobl gartref maen nhw'n teimlo'n ddiogel 

ynddo;  

 Lle cysylltiedig lle mae pobl yn teimlo'n rhan o gymuned ac yn cael eu 

gwerthfawrogi;   

 Lle dysgu lle mae pawb yn cael cyfle i gyrraedd eu potensial.          

Ein Gwerthoedd 
  
Bod yn agored. Rydym yn agored ac yn onest. Mae pobl yn cael cyfle i gymryd rhan mewn 

penderfyniadau sy'n effeithio arnynt, dweud beth sy'n bwysig iddynt a gwneud pethau 

drostynt eu hunain/eu cymunedau. Os na allwn wneud rhywbeth i helpu, byddwn yn dweud 

hynny; os bydd yn cymryd peth amser i gael yr ateb, byddwn yn esbonio pam; os na allwn 

ateb yn syth, byddwn yn ceisio eich cysylltu gyda'r bobl a all helpu - mae adeiladu 

ymddiriedaeth ac ymgysylltu yn sylfaen allweddol. 

Tegwch. Darparwn gyfleoedd teg, i helpu pobl a chymunedau i ffynnu. Os nad yw rhywbeth 

yn ymddangos yn deg, byddwn yn gwrando ac yn esbonio pam. Byddwn bob amser yn 

ceisio trin pawb yn deg ac yn gyson. Ni allwn wneud pawb yn hapus bob amser, ond byddwn 

yn ymrwymo i wrando ac esbonio pam y gwnaethom weithredu fel y gwnaethom.  

Hyblygrwydd. Byddwn yn parhau i newid a bod yn hyblyg i alluogi cyflwyno'r gwasanaethau 

mwyaf effeithlon ac effeithiol. Mae hyn yn golygu ymrwymiad gwirioneddol i weithio gyda 

phawb i groesawu ffyrdd newydd o weithio. 

Gwaith Tîm. Byddwn yn gweithio gyda chi a'n partneriaid i gefnogi ac ysbrydoli pawb i 

gymryd rhan fel y gallwn gyflawni pethau gwych gyda'n gilydd. Nid ydym yn gweld ein 

hunain fel 'trefnwyr' neu ddatryswyr problemau, ond gwnawn y gorau o syniadau, asedau ac 

adnoddau sydd ar gael i wneud yn siŵr ein bod yn gwneud y pethau sy'n cael yr effaith 

mwyaf cadarnhaol ar ein pobl a lleoedd. 



 

 

Caredigrwydd – Byddwn yn dangos caredigrwydd i bawb yr ydym yn gweithio gyda nhw, 

gan roi pwysigrwydd perthnasoedd a’r cysylltiadau sydd gennym â’n gilydd wrth wraidd pob 

rhyngweithio. 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. PURPOSE 

1.1  To approve the Council’s response to the Welsh Government’s consultation on the 
 extension of job share provisions for elected members of principal councils to non-
 executive roles.  

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1  That Cabinet approve the consultation response at Appendix 2. 

 

3. KEY ISSUES 

  

3.1  The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 introduced provisions that 
 enabled two or more members to jointly share a Cabinet role. 

3.2  It was introduced to support diversity in those standing for election and encourage 
 more people to undertake senior positions in the Council by enabling them to 
 balancing the work of being a member of Cabinet alongside other responsibilities. 

3.3  Since the Local Government elections in May 2022 there have been two 
 instances of job sharing within the executive, with the roles of Cabinet Member for 
 Engagement and Equalities and Cabinet Member for Resources being shared 
 during the current term.   

3.4  Welsh Government have launched a consultation in relation to proposals to 
 expand the current job sharing provisions. A copy of Welsh Government’s 
 consultation  document is attached at Appendix 1 of this report. The proposals 
 seek to extend the job sharing provisions beyond Cabinet to include the 
 following non-executive roles, all of which are entitled to a senior responsibility 
 allowance in accordance with the  determination of the Independent Remuneration 
 Panel for Wales: 

 

 chair of a council 

 vice-chair of a council 

 presiding member of a council 

 deputy presiding member of a council 

SUBJECT: Consultation Response extension of job share 

provisions for elected members of principal councils 

to non-executive roles 

MEETING: CABINET 

DATE:   25 September 2024 

DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: All 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 chair of a committee or sub-committee of a council 

 vice-chair or deputy chair of a committee or sub-committee of a council 

 deputy mayor in a mayor and cabinet executive 

 

3.5  The consultation seeks responses to five specific questions and also provides an 
 opportunity to add any additional comments in relation to relevant matters which are not 
 specifically addressed.  

3.6  A draft response has been prepared by the Head of Democratic Services and is 
 attached at Appendix 2 of this report. The Council’s constitution requires Cabinet to 
 agree responses to consultations from Welsh Government. 

3.7  If the attached consultation response is approved by Cabinet, it will be submitted by the 
 Head of Democratic Services by the deadline of 4th October 2024. 

 

4. EQUALITY AND FUTURE GENERATIONS EVALUATION (INCLUDES SOCIAL 
JUSTICE, SAFEGUARDING AND CORPORATE PARENTING) 

4.1  N/a 

 

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1  n/a 

 

6. CONSULTEES 

Chief Officer, Law & Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
Cabinet Member for Equalities 

 

7. Background Papers 

 Appendix 1 – Welsh Government Consultation Document 

 Appendix 2 – Draft Consultation Response 

 

8. AUTHOR 

John Pearson, Local Democracy Manager  

 

9. CONTACT DETAILS 

E-mail: johnpearson@monmouthshire.gov.uk 

Page 2



PUBLICATION, DOCUMENT

Consultation on the
extension of job share
provisions for elected
members of principal
councils to non-executive
roles
We want your views on proposed changes to extend job
sharing arrangements for elected members in principal
councils to include non-executive roles.

First published: 12 July 2024

Last updated: 12 July 2024

This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version.
Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-
councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version.
Get information on copyright. Page 3

https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


Contents
Supporting diversity

Job-sharing for councillors in local government

Executive job-share arrangements

Standing for election as a job-share partnership

Extension of job-sharing to non-executive roles

Political balance of committees

Proposed action

Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021

Consultation questions

How to respond

Your rights

Further information and related documents

This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version.
Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-
councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version.
Get information on copyright. Page 4

https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


Supporting diversity

Local councils are responsible for a wide range of services and matters. The
decisions councils make can impact on both individuals and the whole
community, this means it is vital all groups and voices are represented and
heard as part of our democratic system.

For the purposes of this consultation document, reference to a "council" is to a
principal council (i.e. a county or county borough council in Wales) and a
reference to a "councillor" is to a member of a principal council.

To support diversity of representation on our councils, the Welsh Government is
committed to tackling the barriers which prevent an individual’s active
participation in local democracy through elected office. Diversity in decision
makers is critical to effective decision making as diverse groups bring a range of
backgrounds, perspectives and experiences, which reflect the needs of the wide
range of citizens they serve.

We have already put in place a range of measures to support diversity amongst
councillors including enabling the use of multi-location or hybrid meetings,
introducing family absence, reissuing guidance on the support that should be
provided to councillors, and implementing a pilot Access to Elected Office Fund
to support disabled people wishing to stand for election.

Job-sharing for councillors in local government

The term job-share in many ways is self-explanatory. It is an approach which
enables one role to be shared by 2 or more, but usually 2 individuals. The job-
share partners will undertake the same role, share the remuneration for the role
on the basis of the time commitment for the role, usually on a 50/50 basis but

This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version.
Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-
councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version.
Get information on copyright. Page 5

https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


this can be divided differently depending on the agreement between the job-
share partners. While responsibilities for the role are shared, often each person
has responsibility for specific aspects of the role.

Welsh Ministers recognise the opportunity to support diversity offered through
job sharing and how this could enable more people to participate in local
democracy. This is why the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021
(“the 2021 Act”) made provisions for job-sharing by executive members as a
means of supporting greater diversity in some of the most senior elected roles in
local government. The 2021 Act provides for this to be extended to other senior
roles held by councillors such as chairs of committees.

Many councillors find it difficult to balance the demanding role of being a
councillor with the personal responsibilities of caring for loved ones as well as
other commitments. The challenges of the role, the sensitivities of many of the
activities undertaken and the increasing expectation of the public that councillors
are ‘on duty’ 24 hours a day, 7 days a week can prevent individuals from giving
serious consideration to becoming a councillor.

The Welsh Government undertook a programme of research to find out more
about the role of councillors in Wales, their remuneration and experiences of
citizen engagement. Key points made by councillors about their workload were
as follows:

• Around two-fifths of principal councillors (44%) said they spent 31 hours or
more per week undertaking council business.

• Of these figures, a quarter of principal councillors (25%) indicated that they
worked more than 40 hours each week.

• Two-thirds (66%) said they were available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week,
with only 4% of respondents stating they had set times during which they
could be contacted by constituents.

• Principal councillors emphasised their day-to-day role and workload varied
considerably each week, depending on the nature of the work they were

This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version.
Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-
councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version.
Get information on copyright. Page 6

https://www.gov.wales/written-statement-survey-councillors-wales
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


involved in (for example, attending formal council and committee meetings,
dealing with casework and engaging with constituents) and the type of roles
they held within the council.

• A particular concern was the increasing workload and time commitments that
the role demanded, with many finding it increasingly difficult to maintain a
distinction between their council role and private life.

• Respondents also noted that it was becoming increasingly difficult for
councillors to sustain their work commitments alongside full-time
employment.

Implementing Job-sharing is not without its challenges and issues such as:
potential duplication of work, additional time spent in planning the division of
workload or meetings; and possibility of poor communication or relationship
between job-share partners need to be taken into account. It is also possible that
despite sharing the same political background/party, job-sharers may have
different views on certain specific issues.

However, feedback from councillors who are or have been job-sharers in
executive roles suggest that such disadvantages would be outweighed by the
benefits as it offers opportunities to promote greater diversity, flexibility, and
collaboration that better services the interests and needs of the communities.
The following are some of the benefits identified from our discussions:

• Increased diversity and representation: Job-sharing can attract a more
diverse pool of candidates for senior roles, as it can accommodate
individuals with varying schedules, responsibilities, and backgrounds.

• Broader skill set: 2 individuals with different strengths and areas of expertise
can complement each other in a job-sharing arrangement.

• Enhanced work-life balance: senior elected council positions can be
demanding and time-consuming. Job-sharing allows individuals to balance
their responsibilities with other commitments, such as family, work, or
personal pursuits.

• Breaking down barriers for those people who would not ordinarily think of

This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version.
Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-
councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version.
Get information on copyright. Page 7

https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


this as a viable role for them to apply for due to time-commitment.
• Continuity and consistency: In cases where one councillor needs to take a

temporary leave of absence (due to illness, family matters, etc.), the other
councillor can ensure continuity and prevent disruptions in the council's
functioning.

• Diverse perspectives and solutions: With 2 individuals in a job-sharing
arrangement, there is a greater likelihood of considering a wider range of
perspectives and ideas. This can lead to more creative and inclusive
decision-making.

• Skill development and learning opportunities: Job-sharing can provide a
unique learning experience for both individuals involved. They can learn from
each other, develop new skills, and broaden their understanding of wide
variety of issues.

Executive job-share arrangements

The 2021 Act included provisions to address several specific issues about the
practical arrangements for job-share partnerships. These included voting
arrangements in cabinet, quorum arrangements for meetings where job-share
partners attended and rules about the number of cabinet members permissible
when cabinets included job-share arrangements.

Since removing the barriers to job-share arrangements within council
executives, several councils have put job-share arrangements in place. We
would welcome your thoughts on how this has operated so far and whether
anything further could be done to support councils wishing to put this kind of job-
share arrangement in place.

This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version.
Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-
councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version.
Get information on copyright. Page 8

https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


Standing for election as a job-share partnership

During the passage of the 2021 Act, there was some support for legislating to
allow job sharing for all councillors i.e. a job sharing on the ballot paper. This is a
complex matter for which it was recognised further work was needed to fully
understand the issues that could arise. As a result, this aspect of job-sharing is
not considered further in this consultation but will be the subject of a more
detailed consultation in the future.

Extension of job-sharing to non-executive roles

Section 60 of the 2021 Act provides for Welsh Ministers to make regulations to
facilitate changes to the legislation to remove the barriers for job-share partners
to hold a range of non-executive roles. The Act also makes provision for Welsh
Ministers to issue guidance in respect of this matter and that where guidance is
issued principal councils must have regard to it. The relevant non-executive
roles are:

• chair of a council
• vice-chair of a council
• presiding member of a council
• deputy presiding member of a council
• chair of a committee or sub-committee of a council
• vice-chair or deputy chair of a committee or sub-committee of a council
• deputy mayor in a mayor and cabinet executive

In light of the experience to date with executive arrangements, we have
identified some areas which require further consideration, and we would be
grateful for your views about these matters.

This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version.
Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-
councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version.
Get information on copyright. Page 9

https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


Member voting

It is proposed that job-sharers for all of the roles identified in section 60 of the
2021 Act will have one vote between them, as is the case with executive
arrangements (para 2B(2) of Schedule 1 to the Local Government Act 2000).

Where job-sharers attend a meeting in a non-executive role listed in paragraph
15, it is further proposed that they together count only as one person for the
purpose of determining quorum (as is the case with executive arrangements -
para 2B(3) of Schedule 1 to the Local Government Act 2000).

In executive roles, where job-sharers are unable to agree a position upon which
a vote is held, the votes of the job-sharers do not count towards the vote. This
applies only in circumstances where the job-sharers are voting on an issue as
part of their cabinet role. When voting on other matters e.g., as part of a full
council vote, each councillor is entitled to an individual vote. These
arrangements are set out in the statutory guidance which supports the legislative
provisions for executive job share arrangements. We intend to adopt this same
approach in guidance to support non-executive job share arrangements. This
would only apply in circumstances where a councillor is voting on a matter as
part of a job-share arrangement in one of the specified posts set out under the
Extension of job-sharing to non-executive roles section.

There is, however, a particular issue which requires consideration in respect of
situations where a chair of a committee is operating on a job-share basis and the
job-share partners are unable to agree on a position to take when voting. In
these circumstances, we propose where there is a vice chair, they assume the
responsibility for the casting vote. In the event there is no vice chair, the Chairs
are required to vote against the proposal. We intend to include this approach in
guidance to principal councils.

This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version.
Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-
councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version.
Get information on copyright. Page 10

https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles#148660
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


Political balance of committees

Councils conduct much of their business through committees. The law requires
most of the committees are ‘politically balanced’. The Local Government
(Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 as amended by The Local
Government (Committees and Political Groups) (Amendment) (Wales)
Regulations 2014 makes provisions for these arrangements. Statutory and non-
statutory guidance on democracy within principal councils, issued by the Welsh
Ministers in July 2023, explains the detail of these arrangements. The key matter
is that the seats on each committee reflect the political make-up of the council,
so if a party or independent group had 40% of the seats on the full council, it will
be allocated 40% of the seats on each committee of the council which the law
requires to be a ‘politically balanced’ committee.

As job-share arrangements operate on the basis that those operating under a
job-share basis are equal to one role and one vote, the political balance
arrangements should not be impacted by job-share arrangements. However,
there could be an impact on the political balance arrangements if job-share
partners were appointed to roles from different parties. Careful consideration
would need to be given to the political balance calculations if this were to be the
case and agreed by all parties prior to the arrangement being confirmed. It is not
expected that these circumstances would arise, except in rare cases, as it is
anticipated most non-executive roles would be shared by persons from the same
political group.

Proposed action

Welsh Ministers propose to make regulations and to issue guidance in support
of the regulations to facilitate the extension of job-sharing to non-executive
members of principal councils to non-executive roles as set out under the

This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version.
Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-
councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version.
Get information on copyright. Page 11

https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


Extension of job-sharing to non-executive roles section.

Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act
2021

Impact of proposals

The facilitation of job-share arrangements for executive roles has been
welcomed, the intention is to extend this flexibility and to encourage greater
diversity in non-executive roles as a result. We hope the planned change to
allow for non-executive member of councils to job-share roles will have a
positive impact on diversity by allowing more people who may not otherwise
have had sufficient time available due to other commitments (such as caring
responsibilities) to take up senior roles in local government.

It is hoped the proposals will also have a positive impact on well-being of
members with regards to work/life balance and having sufficient time for any
family commitments. There may also be a positive impact on councils as
organisations, as job-sharing may provide opportunities for coaching members
into new roles and for succession planning of positions.

Consultation questions

Question 1

We would be interested in any observations/comments you may have on the
operation of job-share arrangements within executive roles within councils in
Wales.

This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version.
Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-
councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version.
Get information on copyright. Page 12

https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles#148660
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


Question 2

Do you agree with the proposed approach for the voting arrangements for non-
executive job-share partners and that the details of the approach should be set
out in guidance?

Question 3

Do you agree that under normal circumstances job-share arrangements should
not impact upon the political balance of committees?

Question 4

Do you agree that in those cases where a job-share is made up of partners from
different parties, the approach to calculating the membership of the committee
should be agreed by all parties?

Question 5

We would like to know your views on the effects the proposed change would
have on the Welsh language, specifically on opportunities for people to use
Welsh and on treating the Welsh language no less favourably than English.

• What effects do you think there would be?
• How could positive effects be increased, or negative effects be mitigated?

This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version.
Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-
councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version.
Get information on copyright. Page 13

https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


Question 6

We have asked a number of specific questions. If you have any related issues
which we have not specifically addressed, please use this space to report them.

How to respond

Submit your comments by 4 October 2024, in any of the following ways:

• complete our online form
• download, complete our response form and email

lgpolicy.correspondence@gov.wales
• download, complete our response form and post to:

Local Government Democracy Team
Third Floor East
Welsh Government
Cardiff
CF10 3NQ

Your rights

Under the data protection legislation, you have the right:

• to be informed of the personal data held about you and to access it
• to require us to rectify inaccuracies in that data
• to (in certain circumstances) object to or restrict processing
• for (in certain circumstances) your data to be ‘erased’

This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version.
Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-
councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version.
Get information on copyright. Page 14

https://www.gov.wales/node/62660/respond-online
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2024-07/job-sharing-for-councillors-in-local-government-response-form.docx
mailto:lgpolicy.correspondence@gov.wales
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2024-07/job-sharing-for-councillors-in-local-government-response-form.docx
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


• to (in certain circumstances) data portability
• to lodge a complaint with the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) who

is our independent regulator for data protection

Responses to consultations are likely to be made public, on the internet or in a
report. If you would prefer your response to remain anonymous, please tell us.

For further details about the information the Welsh Government holds and its
use, or if you want to exercise your rights under the GDPR, please see contact
details below:

Data Protection Officer

Data Protection Officer
Welsh Government
Cathays Park
Cardiff
CF10 3NQ

E-mail: data.protectionofficer@gov.wales

Information Commissioner’s Office

Information Commissioner’s Office
Wycliffe House
Water Lane
Wilmslow
Cheshire
SK9 5AF

Telephone: 01625 545 745 or 0303 123 1113

This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version.
Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-
councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version.
Get information on copyright. Page 15

https://www.gov.wales/extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
mailto:data.protectionofficer@gov.wales
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


Website: ico.org.uk

UK General Data Protection Regulation (UK GDPR)

The Welsh Government will be data controller for any personal data you provide
as part of your response to the consultation. Welsh Ministers have statutory
powers they will rely on to process this personal data which will enable them to
make informed decisions about how they exercise their public functions. Any
response you send us will be seen in full by Welsh Government staff dealing
with the issues which this consultation is about or planning future consultations.
Where the Welsh Government undertakes further analysis of consultation
responses then this work may be commissioned to be carried out by an
accredited third party (e.g. a research organisation or a consultancy company).
Any such work will only be undertaken under contract. Welsh Government’s
standard terms and conditions for such contracts set out strict requirements for
the processing and safekeeping of personal data. In order to show that the
consultation was carried out properly, the Welsh Government intends to publish
a summary of the responses to this document. We may also publish responses
in full. Normally, the name and address (or part of the address) of the person or
organisation who sent the response are published with the response. If you do
not want your name or address published, please tell us this in writing when you
send your response. We will then redact them before publishing.

You should also be aware of our responsibilities under Freedom of Information
legislation. If your details are published as part of the consultation response then
these published reports will be retained indefinitely. Any of your data held
otherwise by Welsh Government will be kept for no more than three years.

This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version.
Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-
councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version.
Get information on copyright. Page 16

https://ico.org.uk/
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


Further information and related documents

Number: WG50255

You can view this document in alternative languages. If you need it in a
different format, please contact us.

This document may not be fully accessible.
For more information refer to our accessibility statement.

This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version.
Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-
councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version.
Get information on copyright. Page 17

https://gov.wales/alternative-languages
https://gov.wales/contact-welsh-government
https://www.gov.wales/accessibility-statement-govwales
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


This page is intentionally left blank



This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version. 

Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal- 

councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version. 

Get information on copyright. 

 

 
 

 

 
 

PUBLICATION, DOCUMENT 

Consultation on the 
extension of job share 
provisions for elected 
members of principal 
councils to non-executive 
roles 

We want your views on proposed changes to extend job 

sharing arrangements for elected members in principal 

councils to include non-executive roles. 

First published: 12 July 2024 

 
Last updated: 12 July 2024 

 

Page 19

https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version. 

Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal- 

councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version. 

Get information on copyright. 

 

Consultation questions 

 
Question 1 

 
We would be interested in any observations/comments you may have on the 

operation of job-share arrangements within executive roles within councils in 

Wales. 

 
The ability of Cabinet members to share a portfolio role has enabled greater flexibility for those 

members to balance their work as a Cabinet member with other responsibilities. This has a 

positive impact on diversity by creating opportunities for individuals who may not otherwise 

have had sufficient time to devote to a role on the executive due to other commitments. Further, 

allowing a Cabinet role to be shared by more than one individual, allows a wider range of 

knowledge and experience to be utilised. 

 

However, in smaller authorities, an increased number of executive members may cause 

workload management issues for non-executive members in relation to other committee work. 

For example, Cabinet members are unable to sit on Scrutiny Committees, and there are 

restrictions set out within existing legislation relating to executive membership of other 

committees. Therefore, where more members are part of the executive due to job sharing 

arrangements, this could increase the workload of non-executive members and impact upon 

attendance levels across committee meetings. 

 

Members with experience of undertaking job sharing roles in the executive would have 

benefited from training and clearer guidance on how to share the responsibilities of the post 

and ensure that the role is divided equally between those members.  

 

Question 2 
 
Do you agree with the proposed approach for the voting arrangements for non- 

executive job-share partners and that the details of the approach should be set 

out in guidance? 

 
It is agreed that the approach to voting arrangements in respect of non-executive job share 

partners should be set out in guidance. However, consideration should be given to the fact that 

there may be certain implications for committees which do not arise in relation to current job 

sharing arrangements for executive members. For example, executive members are more likely 

to be from one political party, and the discounting of votes where there is a divergence of opinion 

between job sharing partners, is less likely to affect the outcome of a decision than at other 

committees which are subject to political balance requirements and are therefore made up of 

Page 20

https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version. 

Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal- 

councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version. 

Get information on copyright. 

 

members from a number of political groups or independent members. 

 

Consideration should also be given to the potential consequences of the proposal that Chairs be 

required to exercise their casting vote against a proposal where there is no agreement between 

job share partners. This has potentially significant implications for quasi-judicial committees in 

particular, such as Licensing Committee or Planning Committee, where mandating that a vote be 

cast a particular way, could lead to unintended results, including unlawful decisions being made 

leading to the Council facing legal, reputational and financial consequences. 

Question 3 
 
Do you agree that under normal circumstances job-share arrangements should 

not impact upon the political balance of committees? 

 

Yes. It is a legal requirement that committees are politically balanced in accordance with the 
requirements set out in s.15 Local Government and Housing Act 1989 ‘so far is reasonably 
practicable’. 
 
In most circumstances, where job share partners are from the same political group, there would be 
no impact on political balance calculations.  

Question 4 
 
Do you agree that in those cases where a job-share is made up of partners from 

different parties, the approach to calculating the membership of the committee 

should be agreed by all parties? 

 
Yes. Where job share partners are from different political groups, this could affect the ability to 

comply with political balance requirements, and we agree with the proposals that in those 

circumstances, there would need to be provision for cross party agreement prior to such 

arrangements being confirmed. 

 

Question 5 
 
We would like to know your views on the effects the proposed change would 

have on the Welsh language, specifically on opportunities for people to use 

Welsh and on treating the Welsh language no less favourably than English. 

 

• What effects do you think there would be? 

• How could positive effects be increased, or negative effects be mitigated? 

 

Page 21

https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version. 

Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal- 

councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version. 

Get information on copyright. 

 

  We do not consider that the proposed change have any implications for the Welsh      

  language. 

Page 22

https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


This document was downloaded from GOV.WALES and may not be the latest version. 

Go to https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal- 

councils-non-executive-roles for the latest version. 

Get information on copyright. 

 

 

 

Question 6 
 
We have asked a number of specific questions. If you have any related issues 

which we have not specifically addressed, please use this space to report them. 

 
Consideration should be given to the impact of job sharing in relation vice chairs of the relevant 

committees in particular the following: 

 

- Where the chair of a committee is subject to job sharing arrangements, vice chairs will 

have less opportunity to stand in as chair, and therefore less opportunity to develop 

those skills; 

 

- Job sharing chairs will be entitled to a proportion of a senior responsibility allowance, 

whereas a vice chair, who will take on additional responsibility under these proposals by 

being required to exercise a casting vote in certain situations, will not be entitled to a 

proportion of the senior responsibility allowance. 

Page 23

https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/consultation-extension-job-share-provisions-elected-members-principal-councils-non-executive-roles
https://www.gov.wales/copyright-statement


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. PURPOSE: 
 
1.1 To provide Cabinet with the opportunity to re-consider the decision taken by Cabinet 

on September 11th concerning the proposed changes to distance eligibility criteria 
within the proposed Home to School Transport Policy for 2025-26. This follows the call-
in of the decision and the subsequent recommendation of the People Scrutiny 
Committee to refer the matter back to Cabinet. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
2.1 That Cabinet decides whether to reaffirm its decision taken on 11th September to 

approve the distance eligibility criteria in the Home to School Transport Policy in light 

of the comments made by the People Scrutiny Committee on 19th September. 

 

2.2 That the points highlighted by the People Scrutiny Committee are used to inform the 
way in which future consultation exercises are carried out. 

 
3. KEY ISSUES: 
 
3.1 The Council’s constitution gives scrutiny committees the right to call-in, for 

reconsideration, decisions made but not yet implemented by the Cabinet.  This is one 
of the ways in which the executive can be held to account.  The committee has the 
option to:  

 

 Accept the Cabinet decision; or 

 Refer the matter back to the Cabinet with reasons; or 

 Refer the matter to full Council for consideration with reasons. 
 
3.2 On 19th September People Scrutiny Committee debated a call-in for the reasons: 
 

“Insufficient public consultation, which took place over the school holidays preventing 
many families from expressing their views.” 

 
3.3 A draft note of the meeting is attached as appendix 1. This has not yet been approved 

by the committee as a formal minute of proceedings. The original paper considered by 
Cabinet is contained as a link within the background papers of this report and a full 
recording of the meeting is available on YouTube to allow Cabinet members to fully 
appraise themselves of the views of the committee prior to reconsidering the decision.  

 
3.4 The committee focussed, in particular, on the length/timing of the consultation. The 

example of Rhondda Cynon Taff was cited as good practice that could be learnt from. 

SUBJECT: CALL IN OF THE HOME TO SCHOOL TRANSPORT POLICY 2025-26 

MEETING: Cabinet 

DATE: 25th September 2024 

DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: All 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4



It was recognised that there were more responses to the consultation than previous 
ones. The committee suggested that this might be due to the scope of the changes.  

 
3.5 There were also concerns about whether the questions were clear, but officers assured 

the committee that parents found the consultation easy to understand and engage with. 
Explanations and reassurances were given about when safe walking route 
assessments would take place, though there are still concerns about them among 
members. The Cabinet Member agreed to share the legal advice from the Monitoring 
Officer with members regarding the decision to change the date of the consultation.  
There was a suggestion that changes could be delayed to the next academic year. 

 
3.6 Following a vote the committee agreed to refer the decision back to Cabinet.  
 
4.0 EQUALITY AND FUTURE GENERATIONS EVALUATION (INCLUDES SOCIAL 

JUSTICE, SAFEGUARDING AND CORPORATE PARENTING): 
 
4.1 A full impact assessment was conducted as part of the original recommendation made 

to Cabinet.  
 
4.2 The evaluation has highlighted the complexities of the provision of home to school 

transport including its substantial impact on resources, its impact on climate change 
and the need to continually evaluate provision to respond to changing social, 
economic, legislative and environmental needs. It is apparent that any reduction in the 
current provision will negatively impact on both existing and future users of the service 
as there is an expectation that the Council will continue to provide a service which 
exceeds its statutory functions.  

 
4.3 There is particular concern that the proposed reversion to statutory distance eligibility 

criteria will disproportionately impact Welsh medium education. The current data and 
evidence does not support this supposition as of the 300 23-24 home to school 
transport users that would be impacted by this proposal only 10 of them are attending 
Welsh medium education. It is acknowledged however that the distance criteria may 
impact future decisions if parents can choose a closer English medium school. The 
proposals may also result in increased hardship or logistic difficulties for working 
families or those who are unable to access transport. If parents have evidenced 
medical needs that prevent them from accompanying primary aged learners to walk to 
school they are able to apply for discretionary transport. Similarly, learners who have 
evidenced medical conditions that prevents them from walking to school can also apply 
for discretionary transport.  

 
4.4 There is the potential that carbon emissions will increase if all parents choose to drive 

their children to school, however this will be offset by a reduction in home to school 
vehicle movements which are predominantly diesel and highest emitters of carbon 
emissions.   

 
4.5 The full integrated impact assessment can be viewed here. 
 
5. EVALUATION CRITERIA 
 
5.1 As set out in the original report. 
 
6. REASONS: 
 
6.1 To reconsider the Cabinet’s decision in line with the recommendation of the People 

Scrutiny Committee.  

Page 26

https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/s39272/Transport%20Policy%20EQIA%20August%202024%20v%206.3.pdf


 
7. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: 
 
7.1 As set out in the original report to Cabinet The forecast cost for the provision of 

mainstream home to school transport for the financial year 24-25 is £5,726,603 against 
a budget allocation of £5,125,025. The budget allocation for ALN transport is 
£2,451,243 and the annual expenditure forecast is currently being prepared.  

 
7.2 If option 1 and 2 from the original report are implemented with no legacy protections, 

revenue savings of circa £665,000 could be realised. If option 3 is adopted this would 
enable the Council to work with willing parents to reduce the potential cost burden 
where personal transport budgets are adopted 

 
8. CONSULTEES: 
 

Chief Officer People, Performance and Partnerships 
 

9. BACKGROUND PAPERS: 
 

Cabinet Report – 11th September 2024 
Call-In Request 

 
10. AUTHOR: 
 

Matthew Gatehouse, Chief Officer – People, Performance and Partnerships 
 
11. CONTACT DETAILS: 
 
 Tel: 0778 555 6727 
  E-mail: matthewgatehouse@monmouthshire.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 27

https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/s39271/H2S%20Transport%20Cabinet%20Report%2011.09.24.pdf
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/s39411/Call-in%20Request%20Guidance%20and%20Form.pdf
mailto:matthewgatehouse@monmouthshire.gov.uk


Appendix 1 
 

People Scrutiny Committee 19th September 2024 

Note: the following draft minutes focus on the challenge from members – for the full discussion, the 

recording of the meeting at 

www.youtube.com/watch?v=JyNJK3WKXB4&list=PLLmqn4nAaFJCcbj_Cu0DbhGQkCrLYK7xM  

The minutes has not been formally approved by the Committee and should be read as a draft note of the 

meeting. 

Attendance 

Members: 

Laura Wright, Jackie Strong, Jan Butler, Maureen Powell, Chris Edwards, Sue Riley, Emma Bryn, John Crook, 

Louise Brown, Lisa Dymock, Phil Murphy, Tony Kear, Martyn Groucott 

Officers: 

Debra Hill-Howells, Will McLean, Frances O’Brien, Matthew Gatehouse, Robert McGowan 

1. Apologies for Absence. 

Peter Strong, with John Crook substituting. Penny Jones, with Louise Brown substituting. Simon Howarth, 

with Emma Bryn substituting. 

2. Declarations of Interest. 

None. 

3. Call-In of the decision by Cabinet of 11th September 2024 regarding the Home To School Transport Policy 

2025-26. 

Members who requested the decision be called-in were asked to speak first, outlining their reasons for doing 

so. 

Councillor Dymock: 

Councillor Dymock stated that the consultation on the proposed changes was poorly timed and did not 

adequately inform or engage affected families as it took place in the summer holidays, when families are not 

in their usual routines. This reduced significantly the likelihood that parents or guardians would have had the 

time to engage fully with the process, and many families might not have even been aware that the 

consultation was taking place. 

She noted that the Cabinet Member discussed the timing at the last meeting of People Scrutiny and referred 

to the general election as the reason for delay, but Rhondda Cynon Taf ran its consultation from 27th 

November 2023 to 8th February 2024, and it was extended by 3 weeks to give more people the chance to 

participate – she asked why MCC did not do the same. She suggested that the outreach was limited, with only 

411 responses and 11 emails received – a low response rate that raises serious concerns about the sufficiency 

of the Council’s outreach efforts, especially in regard to rural families. Many of these rely on school transport 

due to the lack of safe walking routes and limited public transport options; families therefore required 

detailed, localised information about how the proposed changes would affect specifically, but there was a 

lack of granular detail about the communities and individuals who would be affected, making it difficult for 

Page 28

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=JyNJK3WKXB4&list=PLLmqn4nAaFJCcbj_Cu0DbhGQkCrLYK7xM


families to fully grasp the consequences of the policy changes’ implications – without this, many parents 

would not have been able to make informed contributions to the consultation or fully appreciate the 

potential impact on their children’s daily lives. 

Councillor Dymock sought clarity as to whether the Equality Impact Assessment was published at the same 

time as the consultation; if not, she argued this would have limited the ability of respondents to fully assess 

the implications of the proposals and would undermine the transparency of the consultation. 

Councillor Kear: 

Councillor Kear supported Councillor Dymock’s comments. He asked if the Cabinet Member could advise who 

gave the legal advice regarding the timing of the consultation and whether that can be made available to 

members. ACTION – to be shared with members 

Councillor Murphy: 

Councillor Murphy highlighted safe walking routes as an example of the importance of proper consultation. 

He appreciated that the current numbers need consideration each year but fundamental routes, e.g. 

Caerwent-Caldicot, should have been identified. A resident whose children would be affected by the 

proposals informed Councillor Murphy that there is no safe walking route from Caerwent to Caldicot, with 

blind corners and a lack of pavement in some places – had the consultation been longer and at a more 

appropriate time, examples such as these, in which walking routes for children would be irresponsible, might 

have been put forward. This argument could surely be replicated in other parts of county. 

Citing further examples of unsafe routes, Councillor Murphy asserted that work to adequately bring forward 

these measures should have been done sooner, as RCT did. Unsuitable routes would then have been 

discounted, relieving parents of their concerns. Not all parents would be able to transport children 

themselves. The need to save money was fully recognised, but the Councillor suggested that there must be a 

more considered process, and that bringing up such decisions so close to deadlines is unacceptable.  

Cabinet Member Martyn Groucott gave the following response: 

The Cabinet Member clarified that legal advice was given by the Council’s Monitoring Officer, and reiterated 

the details of the consultation: this year, it took place between 12th July and 23rd August. 408 people 

completed the online survey and 11 emails were received. He noted that it had been planned to extend the 

consultation period, starting earlier: Cabinet considered this as early as 30th April, and plans were put in place 

for the consultation process to start on 3rd June, but the general election was announced on 22nd May, and 

the Monitoring Officer made it clear that the consultation could not proceed during that period. A strategy 

was therefore developed to enable a detailed and through consultation to be undertaken, despite not being 

able to extend its length. He asserted that the record number of responses received shows that although the 

consultation period was 6 weeks, shorter than planned, its effectiveness was greater than any previously held 

e.g. the consultation for 23-24 which ran between 5th August and 16th September 2022, for which 71 

responses were received, and at which time People committee did not raise any concerns about the length or 

nature of the process, and there was no call-in. This year, despite the process being truncated by national 

politics, the consultation length was identical, and no objection was raised by People scrutiny. 

The Councillor gave further details about this year’s consultation: officers determined to ensure that every 

user of Home To School Transport was made aware of the consultation, particularly as important changes 

were being considered. Before breaking up for the summer, Headteachers made sure that all parents were 

aware of the consultation, which was followed by a monumental effort from officers to ensure its success: 

Page 29



every user was contacted personally, and the Comms team was very successful in a media blitz to ensure all 

communities were fully aware. Officers also undertook face-to-face meetings in each hub, and there were 12 

articles in the 3 local newspapers. As a result, response to the consultation was dramatically better than any 

previously held, with 400+ completed responses – over 100 more than for the consultation over the council’s 

budget, for example. 

The Cabinet Member added further that another improvement was the use of social media. Material was put 

on Facebook and X on 16th, 19th, 22nd, 23rd, 28th, 30th and 31st July and 1st, 5th, 8th, 11th, 14th, 17th, 19th, 21st and 

23rd August, for which there were nearly 60,000 views. A large-print version of the consultation was sent out 

by email, on request, ensuring that those with additional needs were part of the process. Involvement has 

therefore dramatically increased from consultations held previously. The Councillor stated that the evidence 

is therefore overwhelming that time for the process has not been reduced, though it would have been 

extended if circumstances had permitted. Officers’ hard work in engaging the public and stakeholders 

through multiple channels resulted in the hugely improved response rate. Councillor Groucott concluded by 

saying that he could not accept, given the evidence of dramatically increased participation, that it can be 

reasonably argued that the consultation was ineffective and should have been changed, given the 

circumstances. 

Key Points from Members: 

 It was asked if members had had the opportunity to see the responses from the public in order to assess 

whether the consultation was done adequately. Officers responded that the Cabinet report provided 

statistics, but the full detail could be made available to members if they wished. In the survey, the public 

were given the opportunity to give comments through open questions but as it would have been 

impractical to include all 411 responses in the report, they were summarised around themes e.g. Welsh 

language, and respondents were asked what proposals they would put forward to make savings if they 

disagreed with the policy. 

 A member expressed their opinion that consultations should take place in Spring, suggesting that 

increased responses in this instance might be due to the policy being a controversial one. She noted the 

example of one of her ward members having been unaware of the consultation, and a community 

councillor had expressed dissatisfaction with the timing and quality of questions. Officers expressed 

surprise that any users were unaware, with 3,173 emails having been dispatched on 12th July and a 

follow-up sent on 8th August to remind any who hadn’t responded to do so. 

 A member expressed their support for the Call-in and suggested that the consultation had failed two of 

the four Gunning principles, used as a guide for public engagement. The timing during the Summer 

holiday meant respondents would not have been around, and there would always be low engagement, as 

a result. He appreciated the dramatic rise in feedback from residents compared to other consultations 

but suggested this might reflect panic from respondents due to the timing and length of the consultation 

period. He proposed gaining an understanding as to why RCT’s Monitoring Officer determined that they 

held their consultation between November 2023 and February 2024. 

 Clarity was sought as to whether a school not being included in Appendix 1 meant that it was unaffected 

by the proposals. Officers confirmed that the appendix lists only those schools where a Home To School 

service is provided, and therefore those affected. 

 The member asked for clarity as to whether Thornwell was affected. Officers responded that based on 

last year’s figures, there was no-one affected at Thornwell. Because this policy would not take hold until 

September 2025, officers would not ask for safe walking assessments on routes that would not be 

Page 30



required next year. Route assessments will be undertaken but they will be based on current year 

applications once those have been assessed, which would include an assessment of Thornwell. 

 Further explanation was requested for the timing of the assessments. Officers responded that the team 

will go through the data and ascertain which learners will still be with us from 1st September 2025, so 

those assessments can be undertaken. We will identify which learners will lose transport as a result of the 

policy, which learners are still with us, and any new applications we receive. 

 Regarding the timing in relation to RCT’s consultation, it was asked when MCC knew the relevant 

information and the decision was taken to consult later than the Spring. The Cabinet Member responded 

that the timing was based in part on historical precedent in this and the previous administration, though 

this could be changed in the future, and he reiterated that the plan had been to bring this consultation 

forward by several weeks. In addition, the consultation was undertaken in the Summer because the date 

of the policy’s implementation would then not be as far away for parents who need to make the 

application, and if the window were longer between consultation and implementation there might even 

be new children moving into the county between those dates. Therefore, the Cabinet Member asserted 

that RCT is flawed in running its consultation so much earlier than the policy would start. 

 A member expressed their appreciation for decisions that need to be made in light of the budget, but 

that Home To School Transport is one of the most important things that should be retained, and 

suggested that the policy being more of a drastic change than before might be why RCT consulted so 

much earlier. The member suggested that because the consultation did not take place earlier, the 24/25 

policy should be retained for 25/26, especially as parents might not have understood the full implications 

of the proposals. Consultation could then run in the Spring when more information will be available. 

 The member suggested further that this should come under the Education budget because of greater 

contact with schools and the input from Headteachers about the policy’s implications. 

 It was asked if assessing safe walking routes will be done by the Spring term so that parents have more 

time to go through the appeal process, if necessary. Officers responded that regarding timing, in order for 

members to have sufficient evidence and data to inform decisions, officers needed to ensure there was 

time to do that. The team is small, and its focus at the start of the year is assessing eligibility for the 

forthcoming school term. The timing was also determined so as not to conflate Home To School Transport 

with the budget consultation and its implications. Officers tried hard to ensure this be a standalone 

consultation, and that members and parents had all the information they needed to be able to respond 

properly. Any future consultations that are held earlier would need to be held when they would not be 

conflated with other discussions. It was highlighted that safe walking route assessments are carried out 

by independent road safety officers in the Highways team, and that there is no intention of putting 

learners in the position of walking unsafe routes. 

 Regarding identifying cohorts and safe walking routes, it was asked how much notice could be given to 

parents. Officers responded that data from the current academic year will be looked at from the start of 

October. We will aim to contact parents who we think will be affected by the end of the current calendar 

year to make them aware. 

 A member shared Councillor Murphy’s concern about the Caerwent-Chepstow road and children’s safety, 

but expressed their reassurance by the officers’ comments about how seriously it would be taken by 

officers and the road safety assessment process. 

 The Chair asked how targeted the social media campaign was. Officers responded that there was broad 

coverage, with efforts made to ensure a coordinated campaign to ensure anyone accessing Facebook or X 

would receive numerous notifications that there was an ongoing consultation. There were 2,123 views of 

the consultation page, from 1140 unique individuals, with a total of 59,526 views across the two 

Page 31



platforms. Targeting was not done via social media, but stakeholders were targeted by email, as explained 

above. It was also important to target those who may be parents or guardians in the future. 

 In summing up on behalf of the call-in signatories, Councillor Murphy suggested that too much weight 

should not be given to online views. Ordinarily, the signatories would wish to refer the matter to full 

Council but given the short timeframe in which to do so before the statutory deadline of 1st October, in 

this instance they would recommend referring back to Cabinet for reconsideration. 

 

Chair’s Summary: 

The committee expressed its appreciation to the officers for their hard work in conducting the consultation. 

The comments from the committee today focussed, in particular, on looking to the example of Rhondda 

Cynon Taf and the length/timing of its consultation, with a suggestion to have discussions with their officers 

about what might be learned for future consultations. It was noted that there were more responses to the 

consultation than previous ones, but that this might be due to the scope of the changes. A member 

suggested that partly because of this, perhaps the changes could be delayed to the next academic year. There 

were concerns about whether the questions were clear, but officers assured the committee that parents 

found the consultation easy to understand and engage with. Explanations and reassurances were given about 

when safe walking route assessments would take place, though there are still concerns about them among 

members. The Cabinet Member agreed to share the legal advice from the Monitoring Officer with members 

regarding the decision to change the date of the consultation. 

The committee moved to a vote on one of the three options: 

1) Accept the Cabinet’s decision. 

2) Refer the matter back to Cabinet for re-consideration (with reasons). 

3) Refer the matter to Council for consideration. 

The committee voted unanimously for Option 2, to refer the matter back to Cabinet for reconsideration. 

 

Page 32


	Agenda
	3 Ymateb i'r Ymgynghoriad - Ymestyn darpariaethau rhannu swydd ar gyfer aelodau etholedig prif gynghorau i rolau anweithredol
	Appendix 1 - Welsh Government Consultation Document
	Consultation on the extension of job share provisions for elected members of principal councils to non-executive roles
	Contents
	Supporting diversity
	Job-sharing for councillors in local government
	Executive job-share arrangements
	Standing for election as a job-share partnership
	Extension of job-sharing to non-executive roles
	Member voting

	Political balance of committees
	Proposed action
	Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021
	Impact of proposals

	Consultation questions
	Question 1
	Question 2
	Question 3
	Question 4
	Question 5
	Question 6

	How to respond
	Your rights
	Data Protection Officer
	Information Commissioner’s Office
	UK General Data Protection Regulation (UK GDPR)

	Further information and related documents


	Appendix 2 - Draft Consultation Response

	4 GALW I MEWN Y POLISI CLUDIANT RHWNG Y CARTREF A'R YSGOL 2025-26

